

TENTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN BROWARD COUNTY AND G.F.C. CRANE CONSULTANTS, INC., FOR RAIL MOUNTED CONTAINER GANTRY CRANE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR (RLI # 20061111-0-PTOPS-1JR)

This Tenth Amendment to the Agreement ("Tenth Amendment") between Broward County and G.F.C. Crane Consultants, Inc., is made and entered into by and between Broward County, a political subdivision of the state of Florida ("County"), and G.F.C. Crane Consultants, Inc., a California corporation, authorized to transact business in the state of Florida ("Contractor" or "GFC") (collectively, the "Parties").

RECITALS

A. The Parties entered into that certain Agreement between Broward County and G.F.C. Crane Consultants, Inc., dated June 5, 2007 (the "Original Agreement"), to provide rail mounted container gantry crane maintenance and repair services at Port Everglades.

B. The Parties entered into a First Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated January 29, 2009 (the "First Amendment"); a Second Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated September 24, 2009 (the "Second Amendment"); a Third Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated December 6, 2011 (the "Third Amendment"); a Fourth Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated July 5, 2013 (the "Fourth Amendment"); a Fifth Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated June 2, 2015 (the "Fifth Amendment"); a Sixth Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated September 1, 2015 (the "Sixth Amendment"); a Seventh Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated August 16, 2016 (the "Seventh Amendment"); an Eighth Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated September 25, 2017 (the "Eighth Amendment"); and a Ninth Amendment to the Original Agreement, dated September 22, 2020 (the "Ninth Amendment"). The Original Agreement, as amended by each of the nine amendments, is hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement."

C. The Ninth Amendment provided for a thirty-one (31) day extension, through October 31, 2020, with an option for an additional thirty (30) day extension, and an adjustment for labor billing rates to account for new union labor rates, to permit the Parties to finalize the terms for an extension through September 30, 2025.

D. The Parties desire to further amend the Agreement to extend the term for an additional four years and ten months through September 30, 2025, revise the scope of services to account for new gantry cranes, and revise the supporting exhibits for fees, labor billing rates, and costs.

E. County has determined that the extension, additional scope, and changes to compensation are in the County's best interest.

F. The Parties met and negotiated the additional scope of services and related compensation, all in accordance with the Broward County Procurement Code, and this Tenth Amendment incorporates the results of such negotiation.

Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the following:

1. The above Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein as if set forth in full hereunder.
2. Amendments made to the Agreement by this Tenth Amendment are indicated by use of strikethroughs to indicate deletions (~~deletions~~) and underlining to indicate additions (additions), unless otherwise stated.
3. All references to "parties" in the Agreement are hereby deleted and replaced by "Parties." All references to "party" in Sections 8.1, 10.1, 10.6, and 10.27 of the Agreement are hereby deleted and replaced by "Party."
4. The introductory paragraph on page 1 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:

This is an Agreement, made and entered into by and between: BROWARD COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, ~~hereinafter referred to as ("COUNTY,"), and G.F.C. CRANE CONSULTANTS, INC., a California corporation, authorized to transact business in the state of Florida ("GFC") (each a "Party" and collectively referred to as the "Parties").~~

AND

~~G.F.C. CRANE CONSULTANTS, INC., a California corporation, authorized to transact business in the state of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "GFC."~~

5. Article 1 of the Agreement is hereby amended, in part, to read as follows:

...

1.6 **Contract Year or contract year** - The period beginning on October 1st of each year and ending twelve (12) months from such date, and each twelve (12) month period thereafter until the termination of this Agreement.

1.6~~7~~ **Project** - The Project consists of the scope of services described in Article 2.

1.8 **Purchasing Director** - The County's Director of Purchasing as appointed by the Broward County Administrator.

1.9 **Subcontractor** - means an entity or individual providing services to COUNTY through GFC for all or any portion of the work under this Agreement. The term "Subcontractor" shall include all subconsultants.

6. Section 2.1 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.1 GFC shall perform all work identified in this Agreement and ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "A(10)" attached hereto and made a part hereof. The ~~p~~Parties agree that the scope of services is a description of GFC's obligations and responsibilities and is deemed to include preliminary considerations and prerequisites, and all labor, materials, equipment, and tasks which are such an inseparable part of the work described that exclusion would render performance by GFC impractical, illogical, or unconscionable.

7. Section 3.1 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:

3.1 The term of this Agreement shall begin on July 11, 2007 and shall expire at 11:59 p.m. on ~~October 31, 2020~~ September 30, 2025 ("term"), unless sooner terminated as provided herein. ~~COUNTY shall have the option to further extend the Agreement for an additional thirty (30) days, at the sole discretion of the Port Everglades Department, Chief Executive/Port Director, by providing written notice of its election to exercise the additional extension no later than ten (10) calendar days before October 31, 2020. Collectively, the term and the additional extension, if exercised, are referred to as the "term."~~ If the term of this Agreement extends beyond a single fiscal year of COUNTY, the continuation of this Agreement beyond the end of any fiscal year shall be subject to the appropriation and availability of funds in accordance with Chapter 129, Florida Statutes.

8. Article 4, COMPENSATION, of the Agreement is hereby amended, in part, to read as follows (original underlining omitted):

4.1 i) ...

Commencing on October 1, 2015, COUNTY agrees to pay GFC a Lump Sum Annual Management Cost Fee and a Profit Fee, as more particularly set forth in Revised Exhibit "C" attached hereto and made a part hereof. The parties hereto agree that the amount of the Lump Sum Annual Management Cost Fee and Profit Fee is guaranteed for each year of this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in Revised Exhibit "C" with the only adjustments being those made annually, as set forth herein. The Lump Sum Annual Management Cost Fee and Profit Fee shall be paid by COUNTY to GFC in weekly installments in an amount equal to 1/52 of the total Annual Management Cost Fee and Profit Fee. GFC shall invoice

COUNTY weekly.

Commencing on October 1, 2020, COUNTY agrees to pay GFC a Lump Sum Annual Management Cost Fee and a Profit Fee, as more particularly set forth in Exhibit "C(10)" attached hereto and made a part hereof. The Lump Sum Annual Management Cost Fee and Profit Fee is guaranteed for each contract year of this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in Exhibit "C(10)" with the only adjustments being those made annually, as set forth herein. The Lump Sum Annual Management Cost Fee and Profit Fee shall be paid by COUNTY to GFC in weekly installments in an amount equal to 1/52 of the total Annual Management Cost Fee and Profit Fee. GFC shall invoice COUNTY weekly.

ii) ...

Commencing on October 1, 2020, GFC shall bill COUNTY at the labor rates set forth in ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "~~D(9)~~(10)" attached hereto and made a part hereof. In no event shall GFC bill COUNTY for services performed at labor rates that exceed those labor rates set forth in ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "~~D(9)~~(10)." GFC's total labor billings to COUNTY for all labor hours shall not exceed the dollar limits provided in ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "~~D(9)~~(10)."

iii) GFC shall also submit itemized weekly invoices to the Contract Administrator for all non-working labor hours GFC is required to pay pursuant to its applicable collective bargaining agreements for holiday time, sick time, vacation time, jury duty, vacation buy back, and bereavement leave ~~required to be paid by GFC under its applicable collective bargaining agreements~~. GFC shall furnish COUNTY copies of all supporting documentation, including, but not limited to, applicable collective bargaining agreements to support its billings to COUNTY for non-working labor charges. All non-working labor charges shall be paid by COUNTY to GFC at the billings rates ~~(as adjusted)~~ contained in ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "~~D(10)~~." ~~attached hereto and made a part hereof~~. In no event shall GFC bill COUNTY for non-working labor charges at labor rates that exceed those labor rates ~~(as adjusted)~~ set forth in ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "~~D(10)~~." ~~attached hereto and made a part hereof~~.

iv) ...

Commencing on October 1, 2015, GFC shall bill COUNTY for all subcontractor services at the rates (as adjusted) set forth in Revised Exhibit "E" attached hereto and made a part hereof. In no event shall GFC bill COUNTY for subcontracted services at rates that exceed those rates (as adjusted) set forth in Revised Exhibit "E." In no event shall GFC's

subcontractor billings to COUNTY for subcontractor services hereunder exceed the annual dollar limits provided in Revised Exhibit "E." All subcontracted services shall be authorized and performed in accordance with Section 10.7 herein. As compensation for administering and overseeing the work of subcontractors, GFC will be paid an administrative fee equal to 2.5% of the approved billings of subcontractors. The administrative fee will be added to each subcontractor invoice and paid to GFC at the time GFC is reimbursed for the work of the subcontractor.

Commencing on October 1, 2020, GFC shall bill COUNTY for all subcontracted services at the rates set forth in Exhibit "E(10)" attached hereto and made a part hereof. In no event shall GFC bill COUNTY for subcontracted services at rates that exceed those rates set forth in Exhibit "E(10)." In no event shall GFC's Subcontractor billings to COUNTY for subcontracted services hereunder exceed the annual dollar limits provided in Exhibit "E(10)." All subcontracted services shall be authorized and performed in accordance with Section 10.7 herein. As compensation for administering and overseeing the work of Subcontractors, GFC will be paid an administrative fee equal to 2.5% of the approved billings of Subcontractors. The administrative fee will be added to each Subcontractor invoice and paid to GFC at the time GFC is reimbursed for the work of the Subcontractor. GFC may submit invoices no more often than on a monthly basis, but only after the subcontracted services for which the invoices are submitted have been completed.

COUNTY agrees that it will pay GFC within thirty (30) calendar days of its receipt of GFC's invoices as set forth in Section 4.3.2 herein, but will use best efforts to pay sooner. GFC shall furnish the Contract Administrator with copies of the relevant sections of its collective bargaining agreements related to the payment obligations of COUNTY in connection with the scope of services GFC is required to perform hereunder. Notwithstanding, GFC shall allow COUNTY to inspect all of its collective bargaining agreements related to the scope of services GFC is required to perform hereunder.

4.2 REIMBURSABLES

- 4.2.1 In accordance with and pursuant to the Broward County Procurement Code ~~and subject to the limitations set forth below, and when requested in advance by COUNTY,~~ direct nonsalary expenses, reasonable in amount and nature, ~~which that~~ are directly attributable to the Project may be charged at no more than actual cost by GFC and its approved ~~Subcontractors~~ with prior written approval by the Contract Administrator, and shall be limited to the following:

- a) ~~Identifiable transportation expenses in connection with the Project are,~~ subject to the limitations of Section 112.061, Florida Statutes. ~~Transportation expenses, to locations outside the Miami-Dade/Broward/Palm Beach County area or from locations outside the Miami-Dade/Broward/Palm Beach County area will not be reimbursed unless specifically authorized in advance and in writing by the Contract Administrator. Transportation expenses to and from locations within the Miami-Dade/Broward/Palm Beach County area will not be reimbursed.~~
- b) Reimbursable expenses must be individually verified by attached receipts or copies thereof. ~~Receipts are required for items more than \$5.00.~~
- c) Claims for mileage and meals cannot exceed statutory allowance as provided under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, as amended. ~~As of the date of this Agreement's execution by the parties, the rates are: travel \$.445 per mile; breakfast \$6.00; lunch \$11.00; dinner \$19.00. Claims for lodging at single rate (actual cost) must be substantiated by paid bill or charge.~~ Car rentals required for necessary travel should include compact or standard-size vehicles only. Common carrier (air, train, etc.) shall be reimbursable at tourist or coach class fares.
- d) COUNTY's Accounting Division ~~now~~ requires original receipts, or copies of receipts, each of which must be individually certified to be true copies of the original, or a single certificate describing the attached copies and certifying them to be true copies of the originals.
- e) Travel time is not a permitted reimbursable.
- f) Cost of printing drawings and specifications which are required by or of GFC to deliver services set forth in this Agreement.
- g) Specialty crane parts, supplies, and materials that are needed for GFC to deliver crane maintenance services set forth in this Agreement.

- 4.2.2 A detailed statement of expenses must accompany any request for reimbursement. Expenses other than auto travel must be documented by copies of paid receipts, checks, or other evidence of payment. Reimbursable expenses pursuant to this Section shall not exceed ~~Ten One Hundred Thirty-five Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00)~~ (\$135,000.00) in any contract year during the term of this Agreement.

...

9. Section 6.1 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

GFC shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend COUNTY and all of COUNTY's current, past, and future officers, agents, servants, and employees (collectively, "Indemnified Party") from and against any and all causes of action, demands, claims, losses, liabilities, and expenditures of any kind, including attorneys' fees, court costs, and expenses, including through the conclusion of any appellate proceedings, raised or asserted by any person or entity not a party to this Agreement, and caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by any intentional, reckless, or negligent act or omission of GFC, its officers, employees, agents, or servants, arising from, relating to, or in connection with this Agreement (collectively, a "Claim"). If any Claim is brought against an Indemnified Party, GFC shall, upon written notice from COUNTY, defend each Indemnified Party against each such Claim by counsel satisfactory to COUNTY or, at COUNTY's option, pay for an attorney selected by the County Attorney to defend the Indemnified Party. The obligations of this section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. If considered necessary by the Contract Administrator and the County Attorney, any sums due GFC under this Agreement may be retained by COUNTY until all Claims subject to this indemnification obligation have been settled or otherwise resolved. Any amount withheld shall not be subject to payment of interest by COUNTY.

10. Article 7, INSURANCE, of the Agreement is hereby amended, in part, to read as follows:

- 7.1 To ensure the indemnification obligation contained above, GFC shall, at a minimum, provide, pay for, and maintain in force at all times during the term of this Agreement (unless otherwise provided), Comprehensive General Liability, Business Automobile Liability, and Workers' Compensation insurance coverages set forth in Sections 7.3, 7.4, and 7.5, in accordance with the terms and conditions required by this ~~A~~article. Each insurance policy shall clearly identify the foregoing indemnification as insured.

...

- 7.8 Waiver of Subrogation. Unless prohibited by the applicable policy, GFC waives any right to subrogation that any of GFC's insurers may acquire against COUNTY, and

agrees to obtain same in an endorsement of GFC's insurance policies.

7.9 Broader Coverage; Primary and Non-Contributory. If GFC maintains broader coverage or higher limits than the minimum insurance required in this article, COUNTY shall be entitled to such broader coverage or higher limits maintained by GFC. All required insurance coverages under this article shall provide primary coverage and shall not require contribution from any COUNTY insurance, self-insurance or otherwise, which shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to the insurance required and provided by GFC.

7.810 The aforesaid minimum limits of insurance shall be reviewed from time to time by COUNTY and may be adjusted if COUNTY determines that such adjustments are necessary to protect COUNTY's interest. GFC shall ensure that its ~~s~~Subcontractors name COUNTY as an additional insured in the name of "Broward County."

11. Section 10.2 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

10.2 Audit Rights and Retention of Records. COUNTY shall have the right to audit the books, records, and accounts of GFC and its Subcontractors that are related to this Agreement. GFC and its Subcontractors shall keep such books, records, and accounts as may be necessary in order to record complete and correct entries related to this Agreement and performance under this Agreement. All such books, records, and accounts shall be kept in written form, or in a form capable of conversion into written form within a reasonable time, and upon request to do so, GFC or its Subcontractor shall make same available in written form at no cost to COUNTY.

GFC and its Subcontractors shall preserve and make available, at reasonable times within Broward County, Florida, for examination and audit, all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and any other documents pertinent to this Agreement for at least three (3) years after expiration or termination of this Agreement or until resolution of any audit findings, whichever is longer. Any audit or inspection pursuant to this section may be performed by any COUNTY representative (including any outside representative engaged by COUNTY). GFC hereby grants COUNTY the right to conduct such audit or review at GFC's place of business, if deemed appropriate by COUNTY, with seventy-two (72) hours' advance notice.

Any incomplete or incorrect entry in such books, records, and accounts shall be a basis for COUNTY's disallowance and recovery of any payment upon such entry. If an audit or inspection in accordance with this section discloses overpricing or overcharges to COUNTY of any nature by GFC in excess of five percent (5%) of the total contract billings reviewed by COUNTY, the reasonable actual cost of

COUNTY's audit shall be reimbursed to COUNTY by GFC in addition to making adjustments for the overcharges. Any adjustments or payments due as a result of such audit or inspection shall be made within thirty (30) days after presentation of COUNTY's findings to GFC.

GFC shall ensure that the requirements of this section are included in all agreements with its Subcontractor(s).

12. Section 10.7 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows (original underlining omitted):

10.7 ASSIGNMENT, PERFORMANCE AND SUBCONTRACTING

Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein shall be assigned, transferred, or encumbered without the written consent of the other ~~p~~Party. In addition, GFC shall not subcontract any portion of the scope of work required by this Agreement with any ~~s~~Subcontractors not expressly provided in ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "E-4(10)" attached hereto and made a part hereof. Contract Administrator may approve changes to the Subcontractors named in Exhibit E(10), provided the billing rates remain unchanged; the changes will be automatically made a part of this Agreement upon prior written approval of the Contract Administrator. Further, GFC shall not enter into subcontract~~s~~ for any services covered by this Agreement except with the named ~~s~~Subcontractors listed in ~~Revised~~ Exhibit "E-4(10)" attached hereto and made a part hereof and then only after receiving the prior written approval of: i) the Contract Administrator where such subcontracting~~ed~~ services do not exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000); ii) the COUNTY's Purchasing Director where such subcontracting~~ed~~ services exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000) but are not greater than Four Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$2400,000); and iii) the Broward County Board of County Commissioners where such subcontracting~~ed~~ services exceed Four Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$2400,000). COUNTY reserves the right ~~over the term and Option Term hereof,~~ to contract with third party contractors for any repair services to the container gantry cranes which COUNTY deems necessary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is the intent of the ~~p~~Parties that COUNTY will not outsource day to day maintenance and repair work affecting GFC's uptime obligations under this Agreement. GFC shall bill COUNTY for subcontracted service(s) at the rates provided for herein. COUNTY is solely contracting with GFC for the services provided hereunder. Subcontractors are selected and supervised by GFC and submitted to the Contract Administrator for approval. GFC will submit any changes in ~~s~~Subcontractor personnel to Contract Administrator.

GFC represents that each person who will render services pursuant to this Agreement is duly qualified to perform such services by all appropriate governmental authorities, where required, and that each such person is

reasonably experienced and skilled in the area(s) for which he or she will render his or her services.

GFC shall perform its duties, obligations, and services under this Agreement in a skillful and respectable manner. The quality of GFC's performance and all interim and final services provided to or on behalf of COUNTY shall be comparable to the best local and national standards.

13. Section 10.13 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows (original underlining omitted):

10.13 DELAYS IN SERVICE – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Failure of GFC to complete all work with respect to a given work order within the time frame mutually agreed between GFC and the Contract Administrator, or failure to maintain the cranes in accordance with the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit "A(10)," shall subject GFC to liquidated damages at a rate of Six Thousand Dollars (\$6,000.00) per twenty-four (24) hour day beyond a five (5) calendar day time period given to GFC by the Contract Administrator, to come into compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The liquidated damages are hereby fixed and agreed upon between the ~~p~~Parties recognizing the difficulty and impossibility of precisely ascertaining the amount of damages that will be sustained by the COUNTY. The ~~p~~Parties hereto agree that said sum of Six Thousand Dollars (\$6,000.00) per twenty-four (24) hour day is a reasonable amount. Such liquidated damages contained in this section are not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture, but constitute liquidated damages to the COUNTY exclusively for delays in GFC's performance of services hereunder. The ~~p~~Parties shall conduct a walk-through inspection to determine the condition of each crane at the time of acceptance by GFC.

14. Section 10.18 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows (original underlining omitted):

10.18 LAW, JURISDICTION, VENUE, WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL

This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the state of Florida. ~~All parties agree and accept that jurisdiction of any controversies or legal problems arising out of this Agreement, and any action involving the enforcement or interpretation of any rights hereunder, The exclusive venue for any lawsuit arising from, related to, or in connection with this Agreement shall be in the state courts of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida, and venue for litigation arising out of this Agreement shall be in such state courts, forsaking any other jurisdiction which either party may claim by virtue of its residency or other jurisdictional~~

~~device.~~ If any claim arising from, related to, or in connection with this Agreement must be litigated in federal court, the exclusive venue for any such lawsuit shall be in the United States District Court or United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Florida. BY ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT, GFC AND COUNTY HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY RIGHTS EITHER PARTY MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CIVIL LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. IF A PARTY FAILS TO WITHDRAW A REQUEST FOR A JURY TRIAL IN A LAWSUIT ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT AFTER WRITTEN NOTICE BY THE OTHER PARTY OF VIOLATION OF THIS SECTION, THE PARTY MAKING THE REQUEST FOR JURY TRIAL SHALL BE LIABLE FOR THE REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS OF THE OTHER PARTY IN CONTESTING THE REQUEST FOR JURY TRIAL, AND SUCH AMOUNTS SHALL BE AWARDED BY THE COURT IN ADJUDICATING THE MOTION.

15. Section 10.20, of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows (original underlining omitted):

10.20 AMENDMENTS

No modification, amendment, or alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document prepared with the same or similar formality as this Agreement and executed by the Board and GFC or others delegated authority to or otherwise authorized to execute same on their behalf. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the ~~Broward County Director of~~ Purchasing Director is authorized to execute amendments to this Agreement in order to: (1) ~~add, subtract, and/or substitute sSubcontractors named in Revised Exhibit "E," providing the billing rates remain unchanged;~~ (2) add, subtract, and substitute GFC personnel based upon demonstrated needs of the Parties; and (3) ~~adjust the maximum annual payment amount for GFC labor outlined in Revised Exhibit "D(10)" as may be necessary by Ssubsection 21, above.~~

16. Section 10.25 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

10.25 PAYABLE INTEREST

10.25.1 Payment of Interest. COUNTY shall not be liable to pay any interest to GFC for any reason, whether as prejudgment interest or for any other purpose, and in furtherance thereof GFC waives, rejects, disclaims, and surrenders any and all entitlement it has or may have to receive interest in connection with a dispute or claim arising from, related to, or in connection with this Agreement. This subsection shall not apply to any claim for interest, including for post-judgment interest, if such application would be contrary to applicable law.

10.25.2 Rate of Interest. If the preceding subsection is inapplicable or is determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the annual rate of interest payable by COUNTY under this Agreement, whether as prejudgment interest or for any other purpose, shall be, to the full extent permissible under applicable law, one quarter of one percent (0.25%) simple interest (uncompounded).

17. Section 10.28 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows (original underlining omitted):

10.28 LIVING WAGE REQUIREMENT

~~To the extent~~ If GFC is a "covered employer" within the meaning of the Broward County Living Wage Ordinance No. 2002-45, as may be amended from time to time, Sections 26-100 through 26-105, Broward County Code of Ordinances, GFC agrees to and shall pay to all of its employees providing "covered services," as defined ~~therein~~ the ordinance, a living wage as required by such ordinance, and GFC shall fully comply with the requirements of such ordinance ~~and shall satisfy, comply with, and complete all of the obligations set forth therein.~~ GFC shall be responsible for ~~and~~ shall ensure that all of its ~~s~~Subcontractors that qualify as "covered employers" fully comply with the requirements of such ordinance ~~and satisfy, comply with, and complete all of the obligations set forth therein.~~

18. Sections 10.31 and 10.32 are hereby added to the Agreement, to read as follows:

10.31 PUBLIC RECORDS

To the extent GFC is acting on behalf of COUNTY as stated in Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, GFC shall:

10.31.1 Keep and maintain public records required by COUNTY to perform the services;

10.31.2 Upon request from COUNTY, provide COUNTY with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time and at a cost that does not exceed that provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law;

10.31.3 Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement and following completion or termination of this Agreement if the records are not transferred to COUNTY; and

10.31.4 Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, transfer to COUNTY, at no cost, all public records in possession of GFC or keep and maintain public records required by COUNTY to perform the services. If GFC transfers the records to COUNTY, GFC shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. If GFC keeps and maintains the public records, GFC shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to COUNTY upon request in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of COUNTY.

A request for public records regarding this Agreement must be made directly to COUNTY, who will be responsible for responding to any such public records requests. GFC will provide any requested records to COUNTY to enable COUNTY to respond to the public records request.

Any material submitted to COUNTY that GFC contends constitutes or contains trade secrets or is otherwise exempt from production under Florida public records laws (including Chapter 119, Florida Statutes) ("Trade Secret Materials") must be separately submitted and conspicuously labeled "EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORD PRODUCTION – TRADE SECRET." In addition, GFC must, simultaneous with the submission of any Trade Secret Materials, provide a sworn affidavit from a person with personal knowledge attesting that the Trade Secret Materials constitute trade secrets under Section 812.081, Florida Statutes, and stating the factual basis for same. If a third party submits a request to COUNTY for records designated by GFC as Trade Secret Materials, COUNTY shall refrain from disclosing the Trade Secret Materials, unless otherwise ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or authorized in writing by GFC. GFC shall indemnify and defend COUNTY and its employees and agents from any and all claims, causes of action, losses, fines, penalties, damages, judgments and liabilities of any kind, including attorneys' fees, litigation expenses, and court costs, relating to the nondisclosure of any Trade Secret Materials in response to a records request by a third party.

IF GFC HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO GFC'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (954) 468-3501, JORHERNANDEZ@BROWARD.ORG, 1850 ELLER DRIVE, SUITE 603, FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33316.

10.32 VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY

GFC represents that GFC and each Subcontractor has registered with and uses the E-Verify system maintained by the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees in compliance with the requirements of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and that entry into this Agreement will not violate that statute. If GFC violates this section, COUNTY may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause and GFC shall be liable for all costs incurred by COUNTY due to the termination.

19. Exhibit A of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced by Exhibit A(10), attached hereto and incorporated into and made a part of the Agreement.

20. Exhibits C, D(9), and E of the Agreement are hereby deleted and replaced by Exhibits C(10), D(10), and E(10), attached hereto and incorporated into and made a part of the Agreement.

21. Preparation of this Tenth Amendment has been a joint effort of County and Contractor, and the resulting document shall not, solely as a matter of judicial construction, be construed more severely against one of the Parties than the other.

22. Except as expressly modified herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.

23. This Tenth Amendment shall be effective upon complete execution by the Parties, with the revised fees and billing rates (as set forth in Exhibits C(10), D(10), and E(10)) retroactively commencing on October 1, 2020.

24. This Tenth Amendment may be executed in multiple originals, and may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, will constitute one and the same document.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have made and executed this Tenth Amendment to the Agreement: Broward County, through its Board of County Commissioners, signing by and through its Mayor or Vice-Mayor, authorized to execute same by Board action on the ____ day of _____, 20____, and GFC Crane Consultants, Inc., signing by and through its _____, duly authorized to execute same.

County

ATTEST:

BROWARD COUNTY, by and through
its Board of County Commissioners

Broward County Administrator, as
ex officio Clerk of the Broward County
Board of County Commissioners

By _____
Mayor

____ day of _____, 20____

Approved as to form by
Andrew J. Meyers
Broward County Attorney
Port Everglades Department
1850 Eller Drive, Suite 502
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316
Telephone: (954) 523-3404
Telecopier: (954) 468-3690

By _____
Al A DiCalvo (Date)
Assistant County Attorney

By _____
Russell J. Morrison (Date)
Senior Assistant County Attorney

AAD/cr/dh
10/23/20, 10/26/20
GFC Crane Consultants_TenthAmd_v7Final-2020-1026
File# 11-3006.01

TENTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN BROWARD COUNTY AND G.F.C. CRANE CONSULTANTS, INC., FOR RAIL MOUNTED CONTAINER GANTRY CRANE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR (RLI # 20061111-0-PTOPS-1JR)

Contractor

ATTEST:

G.F.C. CRANE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Secretary

By _____
President or Vice President

(Print/Type Name)

(Print Name and Title)

(Seal)

____ day of _____, 20____.

OR

WITNESSES:

Signature

Print/Type Name

Signature

Print/Type Name

EXHIBIT “A(10)”
SCOPE OF SERVICES

1.0 GENERAL

1.1 This is a performance-based contract. GFC shall at all times maintain all rail mounted container gantry cranes, mobile harbor crane, and ancillary equipment at Port Everglades in accordance with the specifications of the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) and adherence to the maintenance schedule established by the Port Everglades Department Container Crane Section. The maintenance schedule may from time to time be amended by the Container Crane Section to seek greater efficiencies and/or address items of particular need. It is required that GFC provide preventative maintenance and repair of all County owned rail mounted container gantry cranes, mobile harbor crane, and ancillary equipment related thereto at Port Everglades. There are currently a total of eight (8) rail mounted container gantry cranes at Port Everglades. Seven (7) are located at the Southport facility and one (1) is located at the Midport facility. The mobile harbor crane is located in Midport. A listing of current cranes and ancillary equipment is contained in Section 8 hereof. The County reserves the right to add, delete, and/or substitute the number of cranes and/or pieces of ancillary equipment at any time during the course of the contract and/or reserve the right to modify, upgrade or substitute existing components. It is anticipated that during the term of this Agreement up to six (6) new super post-panamax, low profile, AC drive cranes will be added to the seven (7) existing rail mounted container gantry cranes at Southport. It is also anticipated that up to seven (7) of the existing Southport cranes will be upgraded from their current lifting capacity under container spreader of 46.5 long tons to 65 long tons. Hoist, gantry, trolley, and boom functions will be changed from DC to AC. Maintenance and repair will be accomplished in accordance with the guidelines established by the specifications provided by the O.E.M. as updated and modified by the County. The County, through its Contract Administrator or designee, may modify the O.E.M. guidelines as circumstances warrant. Any modification(s) to the O.E.M. guidelines will be documented and become the standard unless and until subsequently amended. The cranes and ancillary equipment will be maintained and repaired by GFC in a manner that will insure long-term reliable performance and service life. The performance of GFC will be measured in the areas of crane up-time performance, scheduled and timely completion of preventive maintenance and repair tasks, and the level of satisfaction of crane performance by the Port users of the cranes.

2.0 DEFINITIONS

“Ancillary Equipment” shall mean those components and materials needed to support and

maintain the crane(s) and which are to be provided under this Agreement. These include, but are not limited to, maintenance devices, special tools, software, spreaders, cargo beams, and others.

“Crane” shall mean all equipment, systems, sub-systems and devices necessary to allow the rail mounted container gantry (Ship to Shore) cranes and mobile harbor crane to operate productively, safely, and reliably in full accordance with manufacturer’s specifications and with the requirements herein stated against vessels in container loading and unloading operations by longshore operators.

“Port” shall mean the Port Everglades Department of Broward County.

Unless specifically stated otherwise, requirements apply to all cranes and components, even if the requirement is stated in the singular. One gender means both genders.

Currently all maintenance and repairs are performed on a computerized maintenance management system (Datastream MP-2) which generates work orders. During the term of this Agreement, County will change systems from Datastream MP2 to Assetworks (AIM). At no time during the term of this Agreement will the number of back-logged work orders exceed 50 for existing cranes. For each new crane added by the County, said limit shall be raised by 6 back-logged work orders. Work orders that are open for longer than 30 calendar days will be considered back-logged.

3.0 POINTS OF CONTACT AND INTERFACE REQUIREMENTS

3.1 BROWARD COUNTY CONTACT

3.1.1 GFC shall at all times work through the Contract Administrator.

3.2 GFC COORDINATOR

3.2.1 GFC shall at all times work with the County’s Harbor Master Section and Port users to obtain and coordinate vessel operating times, crane assignments and crane availability. A close working relationship is desired between the working levels of GFC and the crane users.

3.3 GFC

3.3.1 GFC shall provide a management level person on-site at all times for contract discussions between the County and GFC. This person must have final decision making authority and be conversant in the working and maintenance requirements of the cranes, to include, but not be limited to staffing, parts

inventories, vessel operations schedule, and GFC's performance.

4.0 GFC'S PERSONNEL

4.1 MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISION

- 4.1.1 GFC shall at all times schedule and assign GFC's staff in the performance under this Agreement.
- 4.1.2 GFC is and shall remain responsible for staffing the job with appropriately qualified individuals at all times and to have adequate backup for those individuals for such situations where additional qualified resources are needed.
- 4.1.3 GFC shall periodically present recommendations to the Contract Administrator for adjustments to the maintenance and repair tasks to improve crane up-time and availability and to promote the long-term durability of the cranes.
- 4.1.4 GFC shall make available to the Contract Administrator or designee its employees with special expertise to assist in design modifications and/or other functions as defined by the Contract Administrator at no additional cost to the County.

4.2 ADMINISTRATION

- 4.2.1 GFC shall provide administrative and support staff necessary to perform under the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
- 4.2.2 GFC shall maintain and retain files for the duration of the contract relating to the crane's operation and maintenance, to include maintenance history, crane logs, performance reports, parts usage, and other records, which document the cranes performance and cost of operation.

4.3 CRANE MECHANIC/TECHNICIAN QUALIFICATIONS

- 4.3.1 GFC, at all times, shall be required to furnish sufficient number of competent and experienced management, supervision, maintenance and repair, and support staff personnel to accomplish all required tasks within stipulated time frames which will achieve performance goals. During the term of the Agreement any personnel not meeting the aforementioned criteria shall be subject to evaluation and replacement if deemed necessary by GFC. In the event of personnel changes during the term of this Agreement, GFC shall provide replacement personnel having comparable or superior qualifications, subject to review by the Contract Administrator.

- 4.3.2 Drive System – GFC shall maintain adequate numbers of supervisor/technicians capable of troubleshooting, servicing, and repairing the GE 2000 Drives and 9030 PLC, and future TMEIC A/C drives and PLCs. These individuals shall be capable of reading, searching, and over-riding ladder logic. Formal training is required in GE 2000, 9030, Cimplicity, and Control System Toolbox, and Proficy ME.
- 4.3.3 Electrical/Electronic – GFC shall maintain adequate numbers of supervisor-electricians/technicians qualified to perform electrical repairs, read, and understand electrical schematics, troubleshooting and maintenance. Supervisors shall be qualified in low voltage communications such as Genius LAN, low voltage signals such as limit switches, receptacles, lighting and general electrical, 480 VAC-3 phase motors, motor control; 600 VDC motor power, and 4,160 and 13,200 VAC-3 phase supply power both on the cranes and with the crane power substation.
- 4.3.4 Mechanical/Structural – GFC shall maintain adequate number of mechanics knowledgeable in crane systems and methods for inspection, troubleshooting, assembly, disassembly, lubrication and repair. As a minimum, the mechanics shall have experience and knowledge in fundamental mechanical and hydraulic systems, such as:
- Antifriction bearing installation, removal and care
 - Power transmission coupling alignment, lubrication and troubleshooting
 - Motor alignment
 - Wire rope lubrication (slushing)
 - Bearing lubrication
 - Wire rope inspection
 - Wire rope re-reeving
 - Bolt torqueing
 - Reading and interpretation of hydraulic schematics, hydraulic component installation and fluid cleanliness and the installation of seals.
 - Experience with the maintenance and repair troubleshooting of Bromma telescopic spreaders, including twin pick.
- 4.3.5 Diesel Engine – GFC shall maintain adequate numbers of mechanics knowledgeable in the maintenance and repair troubleshooting of stationary diesel engines and fuel systems.
- 4.3.6 Mechanical Support – GFC shall maintain adequate numbers of personnel capable of supporting routine maintenance and repair tasks under direction of a knowledgeable mechanical lead person or supervisor.
- 4.3.7 GFC shall provide continuing crane maintenance painting utilizing the

Port's established paint systems. GFC shall provide adequate numbers of qualified painters, as determined jointly by the Parties, experienced in surface preparation and application of industrial and marine coating systems in the climatic and environmental conditions in the Port Everglades area. Knowledge of NACE QC is required. Temporary coating repair is not acceptable.

- 4.3.8. GFC shall be responsible to adequately train all personnel to the level required to effectively perform to the performance standards established.

4.4 REPORTING

- 4.4.1 The following reports shall be regularly provided by GFC to the Contract Administrator:

4.4.1.1 Daily

Log Entry

Work Orders

Crane Damage Reports to include Digital Photographs on the same day of occurrence

Crane Rental Forms

Pre-Operation Crane Inspection Report

4.4.1.2 Weekly

Time Records by Employee

4.5 SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR TASKS

- 4.5.1 All maintenance, repairs, and scheduling are to be undertaken and completed in a timely manner.

- 4.5.2 Pre-Operational Checks – GFC shall perform this check just prior to vessel operation. A qualified maintenance person shall conduct a pre-operational check of each crane and spreader to verify they are safe to operate, meets essential performance measures, and possesses a high likelihood of reliably completing the forecasted vessel operation.

See Attachment 1 for Pre-Operational Check List.

- 4.5.3 Post-Operational Checks – GFC shall perform this check immediately following vessel operations with the intent of determining any repair, damages, adjustment or maintenance needed prior to upcoming vessel operations. Any crane deficiencies or reliability issues discovered during the previous vessel operation are to be corrected prior to the next vessel operation.

- 4.5.4 Scheduled and Non-Scheduled Maintenance and Repair Tasks – GFC shall accomplish all scheduled and non-scheduled maintenance and repair tasks, and shall remain responsible for the accomplishment of these tasks in a timely manner.
- 4.5.5 GFC shall require all supervisor/technicians to be trained on the County's Datastream MP2 Computer Maintenance Management System. These individuals will be trained on the use of the system by the County. GFC shall retrieve all scheduled maintenance and repair inspection tasks from the Datastream MP2 system and shall enter completion dates for each task or inspection completed into that system. All Datastream MP2 training and data entry times of work are to be accounted for by GFC and billed to the County using the established personnel hourly billing rates. The same requirements will apply when County moves to the Assetworks (AIM) system, which will replace the Datastream MP2 system.

4.6 CHANGES IN AND MODIFICATIONS TO CRANES

- 4.6.1 GFC shall make no changes or alterations to the cranes or ancillary equipment without the express written authorization of the Contract Administrator. The County reserves the right to replace original O.E.M. components including but not limited to electrical systems, drive systems, motors, brakes and reducers. GFC shall maintain and repair all replacement equipment.

4.7 STAFFING LEVELS

- 4.7.1 Support of Vessel Operations – GFC shall have a minimum of two qualified crane maintenance workers of which one shall be a supervisor/technician onsite at all times any crane is serving any ship in cargo operations. These maintenance workers shall perform maintenance, inspection, and repairs on adjacent cranes during periods of vessel operation, but adequate capability and capacity of workers must be available at the terminals to immediately respond to and resolve crane downtime problems on the operating crane(s). All GFC personnel supporting vessel operations shall be available to be contacted by stevedoring supervisors via radio during vessel operations.

- 4.7.2 GFC shall be responsible to complete all scheduled maintenance and repair tasks so as to maintain crane up-time and availability goals. GFC shall staff each facility with adequate personnel to achieve this requirement.
- 4.7.3 Breakdowns – Sufficient personnel shall be available on-site to minimize downtime resulting from unexpected failures during vessel operations and return cranes to service in a timely manner.
- 4.7.4 The Contract Administrator may request GFC to increase or decrease staffing levels from its scheduled work force in the best interests of County. Increases and/or decreases will be made within four (4) weeks of notice by the County, unless an otherwise mutually agreeable timeframe is agreed between the Parties. The Contract Administrator shall provide GFC with reasonable notice of any changes in GFC's scheduled work force.

4.8 DAMAGE REPORTING AND REPAIR

- 4.8.1 Damage to the cranes or equipment is to be recorded in the Daily Log and reported to the Contract Administrator. Damage reports can be brief but must fully describe the damage, the parts that will be needed to be repaired or replaced, and cause (if known). Digital photographs shall be taken of each damaged part to further record and document the extent of the damage. Photographs shall be provided to the Contract Administrator along with the report.
- 4.8.2 Following the correction of repairs, a report shall be prepared and submitted which documents the repairs made, itemizes the parts replaced, documents the repaired crane and crane subsystem's safety and reliability resulting from the repair, and documents any deviations the repairs have made.

4.9 EQUIPMENT TO BE PROVIDED

- 4.9.1 Vehicles – GFC shall provide and maintain an adequate number of suitable vehicles to include pickup trucks and vans to service both the Southport and Midport facilities and be able to travel outside the Port within the tri-County area.
- 4.9.2 GFC shall provide all necessary hand and hand power tools and equipment needed to maintain and repair the cranes covered in this Agreement. The County has in its possession and will make available the following specialized crane maintenance equipment to GFC for its use:

- (2) Forklifts (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Parts Washer (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Portable Air Compressors (1-Midport 1-Southport)

- (2) Pressure Washers (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (1) Personnel Cage
- (2) Welding Machines (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Oxygen Acetylene Torch (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Drill Press (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Hydraulic Press (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (9) Grease Lubrication System (1 per crane)
- (14) Stationary Air Compressors (1 per crane, 1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (3) Bromma Spreader Mobile Test Unit (1-Midport 2-Southport)
- (1) Personnel Aerial Platform (185')
- (1) Mobile Crane (Rental)
- (1) Ultra High-Pressure Washer
- (2) Wire Rope Reeving Machines (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (1) Battery Charger
- (2) Stationary Bench Grinder (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Stationary Bench Vise (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Oil Transfer Pumps (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (2) Portable Oil Filtration System (1-Midport 1-Southport)
- (1) GE Genius Handheld Monitor

4.9.3 As a minimum, GFC shall install and maintain at its expense at both the Midport and Southport facilities the necessary office machines, computers, software, and general office supplies in good working condition for the duration of this Agreement. As a minimum, GFC shall provide and maintain the following:

- Telephones and service (excluding port dedicated telephone lines)
- Internet Service
- Computers for all non-Datastream MP2 Applications, or substitute system
- Copy Machine
- Fax Machine
- At least one (1) modern digital camera
- GFC shall furnish all needed office supplies for its use

4.10 SAFETY

- 4.10.1 GFC shall, at all times, be responsible for the safety of its employees within areas where GFC is working. GFC will provide at its expense all safety equipment and safety supplies needed by its employees. GFC shall make proper notification to the Harbor Master and the Contract Administrator when working on cranes and shall provide suitable barricades under the crane when GFC is performing potentially hazardous activities on the crane.
- 4.10.2 GFC shall assure that each of its employees are properly trained and supervised to safely perform the tasks they are assigned.
- 4.10.3 Crane Safety – GFC shall verify that each Crane is safe to operate at the initiation of each period of vessel cargo operation.
- 4.10.4 Accident and Injury Reporting – GFC shall fully document and report any and all accidents within GFC's working areas or activities involving GFC's employees, staff, cranes and/or other persons or equipment to the Contract Administrator in a timely manner.
- 4.10.5 Personal Safety Supplies – GFC shall provide and maintain all safety related equipment appropriate for the work environments.
- 4.10.6 Safety Training – GFC, at its expense, shall establish, implement and train on a regular basis an effective crane and workplace safety program including Lock Out/Tag Out (LOTO).
- 4.10.7 GFC shall establish and maintain a clean and safe working environment in its offices, shops, on the cranes, and within GFC's working areas.

4.11 MATERIALS AND SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY GFC

- 4.11.1 GFC shall provide all work clothes or uniforms without separate charge to the County.
- 4.11.2 GFC shall provide all rags and towels without separate charge to the County.

4.12 DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

- 4.12.1 GFC shall properly dispose of all hazardous materials utilizing the appropriate County furnished on site receptacles in accordance with established County procedures.

4.13 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY OWNED FACILITIES

4.13.1 GFC shall maintain the area within and around the offices, storage, and shop areas in a clean, neat, and acceptable manner. Restrooms will be maintained by the County. Removal of Non-Hazardous trash will be performed by the County from a single large receptacle at each facility. Collection of trash from offices, shops, cranes, and surrounding areas and placement into the large receptacle shall be by GFC. GFC's hours for general cleaning of offices, storage, and shop areas shall not be billed to the County using the hourly billing rates. These services are included within the annual management fee.

4.13.2 GFC shall return all County owned facilities, tools and equipment to the County in the same condition as they existed at the time they were turned over to GFC by County except for normal wear and tear.

5.0 COUNTY SUPPLIED

5.1 FACILITIES

5.1.1 The County will furnish GFC with office and shop space at both Midport and Southport facilities. It is the responsibility of GFC to maintain said space in a clean and orderly condition at all times at its expense.

5.2 SPARE PARTS INVENTORY

5.2.1 COUNTY MAINTAINED INVENTORY – GFC shall have access to the County's 24-hours per day, 7-days per week spare parts inventory on an as needed basis. It is expected that except for emergencies outside of standard working hours (Monday-Friday 0800-1700) GFC will arrange to obtain needed spare parts during normal working hours. GFC shall be responsible for the accounting of all spare parts and materials distributed to GFC by the County. The County's inventory includes high-value parts to include such items as drive system cards, Genius blocks, starters, breakers, sheaves, bearings, wheels, wire rope, hydraulic pumps, valves, and cylinders, flippers and twist locks, and other major crane parts. GFC shall requisition parts from County inventory and shall return all damaged and replaced parts to the County for salvaging or disposal.

5.2.2 GFC MAINTAINED COUNTY INVENTORY – GFC shall have access by authorized personnel to the County provided facilities inventory parts to maintain the cranes and to respond to repairs during vessel operations. GFC shall remain responsible for the County

inventory and for the security of that inventory. Replenishment of GFC's inventory shall be made by the County. GFC shall requisition the purchase of parts through the County.

5.3 SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS TO BE PROVIDED

5.3.1 The County will furnish all necessary fuels, oils, lubricants and solvents, paints and cleaners used in conjunction with the maintenance of the cranes and ancillary equipment.

5.3.2 The refueling of diesel-powered cranes and the crane's standby generators will be performed by GFC.

5.3.3 The refueling and maintenance of GFC's vehicles shall be performed by and paid for by GFC.

5.4 COMPUTERS AND NETWORK CONNECTIONS

5.4.1 The County will provide and maintain one computer at each GFC Midport and Southport office with software and local area network connection into the County's network for the exclusive use of the Datastream MP2 maintenance management system, its replacement system, and Klein System. All other computer needs to include all e-mail, performance tracking, report preparation, and others are to be performed on GFC's computer(s).

6.0 OUTSIDE SPECIALITY SERVICES

6.1 It is intended that GFC perform maintenance and repair work as required. County reserves the right to contract independently or utilize the services of subcontractors for any work related to maintenance and repair of the cranes and/or ancillary equipment in its sole judgment.

GFC may be tasked to assist in the planning of modifications and upgrades to existing equipment, providing labor for testing and operation of equipment. Project management remains with the County.

The below listed equipment will be overhauled and/or rebuilt by GFC's designated subcontractor or by County authorized companies at the election of the County. The routine repairs and preventative maintenance work are GFC's responsibility.

1. Engines including fuel injectors, fuel pumps, starters, alternators, radiators
2. A/C and D/C motors
3. Transformers and breakers
4. Thrusters
5. Hydraulic pumps, cylinders, and actuators

6. Elevator safety devices
7. Computers
8. Drive systems boards
9. Brake Pads/Shoes
- 10 Load Cells
11. Anemometer

- 6.2 GFC shall establish and maintain working relationships with a number of subcontractors with which periodic needed work can be rapidly accomplished.

GFC shall furnish a listing of subcontractors in the following areas:

- 6.2.1 Machining and Welding
- 6.2.2 Electric Motor rewinding/rebuilding/repairs
- 6.2.3 Electric Medium and high-voltage maintenance and repair
- 6.2.4 Rigging
- 6.2.5. Engineering – Structural
- 6.2.6 Engineering – Mechanical
- 6.2.7 Fabrication
- 6.2.8 Structural Flame Straightening
- 6.2.9 Metallurgical and Structural Inspection
- 6.2.10 Major Painting and Water Blasting
- 6.2.11 Hydraulic Repairs
- 6.2.12 Electrical Engineering and Repairs
- 6.2.13 Repair of Electrical Cards/Components
- 6.2.14 Diesel/Generator Repairs
- 6.2.15 Air Conditioning Repairs
- 6.2.16 Overhead Cranes Repairs
- 6.2.17 Fiber Optics Repairs

7.0 MEASUREMENT OF EFFECTIVENESS

7.1 DEFINITIONS

Up-time is defined as the percentage of total time the crane is operable during crane rental times.

7.2 DATA COLLECTION AND REPORTING

- 7.2.1 GFC shall collect data, calculate the values and report up-time on a weekly basis. Each downtime incident shall be recorded with a record of the crane, the beginning date and time of the incident, the duration of downtime, and a brief description of what caused the down time.

7.3 PERFORMANCE EXPECTATION

- 7.3.1 GFC's performance will be measured against a crane up-time goal of 99.8%. GFC's performance will also be measured on the basis of completing preventive maintenance and repair tasks within established time limit intervals as established by the O.E.M. or as modified by the Contract Administrator.

8.0 EQUIPMENT TO BE MAINTAINED

8.1 MIDPORT CRANES

- 8.1.1. MHC-1 - Gottwald Mobile Harbor Crane (Quantity 1) – Manufactured by Gottwald in 2010 with 100LT SWL Capacity, Slewing Boom Crane.

Electrification: On-board diesel driven AC alternator, Siemen DC Drive and Electrics and Gottwald Visumatic CMS in Electrical Room.

Minimum Capacities and Speed:

Rated capacity single lift (below spreader)	40.4 long ton
Rated capacity twin lift (below cargo hook)	49.2 long ton
Rated capacity (below hook)	100 long ton
Outreach from center of tower	167'-0
Lift from pier to bottom of hook	154'-0

- 8.1.2. MP2 – Paceco (Quantity 1) Manufactured by Paceco, Inc. in 1988 with 50LT SWL Capacity, Rail Mounted Gantry, Container Crane, Rope Towed Single Trolley, through-leg load handling, twin box girder type boom.

Electrification: On-board diesel driven AC alternator, General Electric DC 2000, General Electric RX3i PLC and General Electric CMS 2000 in Machinery House.

Minimum Capacities and Speed:

Rated capacity (below spreader)	50 long ton
Rated capacity (below cargo hook)	58 long ton
Hoist speed at rated capacity	150 F.P.M.
Lower speed at rated capacity	190 F.P.M.
Hoist acceleration at rated capacity	2 sec.(approx.)

Hoist speed with empty spreader	360 F.P.M.
Trolley travel	500 F.P.M.
Gantry travel	150 F.P.M.
Boom travel	5 min.

Principle Dimensions

Rail gauge	50'-0"
Frame leg clearance	60'-0"
Overall portal clearance	51'-0"
Total lift, top of rail to underside of spreader	100'-0"
Total lift, minimum	150'-0"
Outreach, centerline waterside rail to centerline spreader	135'-0"
Backreach, centerline landside rail to centerline of spreader	75'-0"
Width of crane with bumpers extended	95'-0"
Boom stowed crane height	270'-0"

8.2 SOUTHPORT CRANES

- 8.2.1 SP-1 thru SP-7 – Samsung (Quantity 7)
Manufactured by Samsung Heavy Industries.
These cranes were built in three separate sets and were built in:

Cranes SP1, SP2 and SP3 were turned over in 1992
Crane SP4 was turned over in 1997

Cranes SP5 and SP6 were turned over in 2000
Crane SP7 was turned over in 2001

The Samsung Heavy Industries low profile cranes are: 46.5 LTSWL Rail Mounted Gantry, Low Profile Post Panamax Container Cranes with Rope Towed Single Trolley, through-leg load handling, box section lateral bracing shuttle boom.

Electrification: is through Cable Reel 4160 volts, 3 phase commercial power, General Electric DC2000, General Electric 9030/9070 PLC, Genius Remote I/O Fiber Optic Network, General Electric CMS 2000 in machinery house, operator's cab and maintenance facility (RCMS), Anti-sway system, semi-automation control.

Minimum Capacities and Speed:

Rated capacity (below spreader)	46.5 long ton
Rated capacity (below cargo hook)	57 long ton
Hoist speed at rated capacity	180 F.P.M.
Lower speed at rated capacity	180 F.P.M.
Hoist acceleration at rated capacity (approx.)	1.5/sec.
Hoist speed with empty spreader	380 F.P.M.
Trolley travel	600 F.P.M.
Gantry travel	150 F.P.M.
Boom travel	5 min.

Principal Dimensions:

Rail gauge	100'-0"
Frame leg clearance	60'-0"
Overall portal clearance	50'-0"
Total lift, top of rail to underside of spreader	106'-0"
Total lift minimum	155'-0"
Outreach, centerline waterside rail to centerline spreader	145'-0"
Backreach, centerline landside rail to centerline of spreader	45'-0"
Width of crane with bumpers extended	86'-0"
Boom stowed crane height	151'-0"

- 8.2.2 SP-8, SP-9, and SP-10 – ZPMC (Quantity 3) Manufactured by Shanghai Zhenhua Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. (ZPMC) in 2020.

ZPMC low profile cranes are: 50 long tons single lift under the spreader, 65 long tons twin lift under spreader, and 100 long tons under heavy lift beam Rail Mounted Gantry, Low Profile Super Post Panamax Container Cranes with Rope Towed Single Trolley, through-leg load handling, box section lateral bracing shuttle boom. Electrification is through Cable Reel 13,200 volts, 3 phase commercial power, TMEIC AC Drives, General Electric RX3i PLC's, General Electric VersaMax Remote I/O, TMEIC LCMS in electrical house,

operator's cab, ground station and maintenance facility (RCMS), TMEIC Anti-sway System, TMEIC Advanced Semi-automation System, TMEIC Maxview Smart Landing System.

Minimum Capacities and Speed:

Single Lift Rated capacity (below spreader)	50 long ton
Twin Lift Rated capacity (below spreader)	65 long ton
Rated capacity (below cargo hook)	100 long ton
Hoist speed at rated capacity	295 F.P.M.
Lower speed at rated capacity	295 F.P.M.
Hoist acceleration at rated capacity	2.0 sec. approx.)
Hoist speed with empty spreader	591 F.P.M.
Trolley travel	804 F.P.M.
Gantry travel	150 F.P.M.
Boom travel	3 min.

Principal Dimensions:

Rail gauge	120'-0"
Frame leg clearance	60'-0"
Overall portal clearance	50'-0"
Total lift, top of rail to underside of spreader	133'-0"
Total lift minimum	193'-0"
Outreach, centerline waterside rail to centerline of spreader	205'-0"
Backreach, centerline landside rail to centerline of spreader	35'-0"
Width of crane with bumpers extended	86'-5"
Boom stowed crane height	175'0"

8.2.3 Spreaders, Over Height Attachments, and Lift Beams:

- Two (2) each: 1996 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- Two (2) each: 1999 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- One (1) each: 2001 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL

- Two (2) each: 2003 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- Two (2) each: 2009 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- Two (2) each: 2010 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- One (1) each: 2011 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- Two (2) each: 2012 Bromma Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- Five (5) each: 2020 Bromma Separating Twin Twenty Telescopic 20', 40', 45' – 50 LT SWL
- Two (2) each: 2014 Bromma Over Height Attachment- 50 LT SWL
- One (1) each: 2015 Bromma Over Height Attachment- 50 LT SWL
- Three (3) each: 2020 Bromma Over Height Attachment- 50 LT SWL
- Six (6) each: SAMSUNG Heavy Lift Cargo Beam – 57 LT SWL
- Three (3) each: ZPMC Heavy Lift Cargo Beam – 100 LT SWL

8.3 ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT TO BE MAINTAINED

- 8.3.1 GFC shall operate the dock moveable rail system. The Port will be responsible for maintaining and cleaning the system.
- 8.3.2 The Port will be responsible for the maintenance and repair of the Panzer belt covering the electrical trench as well as the cleanliness of the trench. That notwithstanding, GFC will perform temporary repairs to the Panzer belt outside of normal working hours (Monday-Friday 0800-1700) in order to avoid disruptions to container crane operations.
- 8.3.3 GFC shall utilize and operate the Port's modular test frame unit.
- 8.3.4 At the County's request, GFC shall assist in the maintenance and repair of the 4,160 VAC and 13,200 VAC crane power systems.

ATTACHMENT 1 to EXHIBIT A

Pre-Operational Check List

From Ground Level

1. Spreader function test
 - 1.1. Expand and retract, 20', 40' and 45' positions
 - 1.2. Flippers - up/down
 - 1.3. Center twist lock housing, up/down
 - 1.4. Seated plungers
 - 1.5. Twist lock operation
 - 1.6. Twin twenty detection system
 - 1.7. In-cell sensors
2. Spreader integrity
 - 2.1. Pyle National plug integrity
 - 2.2. Flipper spring arms and safety chains
 - 2.3. All limit and proximity switches are secure
 - 2.4. Expand and retract chain and slide lubrication
3. Headblock integrity
 - 3.1. Catwalks, ladders, and safety chains
 - 3.2. Baloney tub
 - 3.3. Headblock Twist-locks Indication Lights
 - 3.4. E-stop
 - 3.5. Baloney cable connection at main junction box
4. Gantry area
 - 4.1. E-stops
 - 4.2. 4160 plow, limit switches, rollers, observe during gantry
 - 4.3. Generally, inspect for damage

Pre-Operational Check List (cont'd)

From Crane

1. Check crane functions, from cabs
 - 1.1. Hoist up slow down and stop and over dock slowdown
 - 1.2. Sheave spreader operation
 - 1.3. Gantry left and right
 - 1.4. Trolley forward and reverse slow down and stops, entire length of boom
 - 1.5. Function of load indicator
 - 1.6. Boom out to max position and set deck height
2. Electrical Room checks
 - 2.1. GE Proficy software is closed
 - 2.2. Function of wind speed indicator
 - 2.3. Function offload indicator
3. General walk through crane
 - 3.1. Main machinery house
 - 3.2. Trolley machinery house
 - 3.3. Rope tensioner unit
 - 3.4. Boom gates

* The Pre-Operational Check List is subject to change at any time by the Contract Administrator due to trends and age of the equipment.

EXHIBIT "C(10)"

GFC ANNUAL MANAGEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

I. Annual Management Cost Fee

- 1) The Annual Management Cost Fee is a lump-sum negotiated amount not subject to adjustments except as noted in item (3) below.
- 2) The Annual Management Cost Fee was negotiated to include a fixed annual increase of 2% commencing with Year 15.
- 3) The Annual Management Cost Fee in Contract Years 14-18 is as follows:
 - Year 14 \$ 1,080,886.17
 - Year 15 \$ 1,102,503.89
 - Year 16 \$ 1,124,553.97
 - Year 17 \$ 1,147,045.05
 - Year 18 \$ 1,169,985.95
- 4) The Annual Management Cost Fee for each Contract Year shall be paid by County to GFC in weekly installments in the amount equal to 1/52 of the total Annual Management Cost Fee for the applicable Contract Year. GFC shall invoice County weekly.

II. Profit Fee

- 1) The Profit Fee for each Contract Year 14 through 18 is calculated by taking the sum of the total actual labor cost billing for the prior Contract Year plus the current year Annual Management Cost Fee and multiplying by a factor of 8%.
- 2) The Profit Fee shall be paid by County to GFC in weekly installments in the amount equal to 1/52 of the total Profit Fee for each applicable Contract Year. GFC shall invoice County weekly for each Contract Year.
 - Year 14 \$555,794.41
 - Year 15 \$TBD
 - Year 16 \$TBD
 - Year 17 \$TBD
 - Year 18 \$TBD

EXHIBIT "D(10)"
HOURLY LABOR BILLING RATES AND ANNUAL NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNTS

Exhibit 2
Page 37 of 42

<u>LABOR CATEGORY</u>	<u>HOURS</u>	<u>14TH YEAR</u>	<u>15TH YEAR</u>	<u>16TH YEAR</u>	<u>17TH YEAR</u>	<u>18TH YEAR</u>
Senior Crane Technician	ST	\$ 102.57	\$ 105.65	\$ 108.82	\$ 112.09	\$ 115.45
	OT	\$ 133.58	\$ 137.59	\$ 141.72	\$ 145.97	\$ 150.35
Asst. Senior Technician	ST	\$ 95.18	\$ 98.04	\$ 100.98	\$ 104.01	\$ 107.13
	OT	\$ 123.03	\$ 126.72	\$ 130.52	\$ 134.44	\$ 138.47
Lead Crane Technician	ST	\$ 87.83	\$ 90.46	\$ 93.17	\$ 95.96	\$ 98.84
	OT	\$ 112.51	\$ 115.89	\$ 115.84	\$ 119.33	\$ 122.91
Crane Technician	ST	\$ 84.54	\$ 87.07	\$ 89.68	\$ 92.38	\$ 95.16
	OT	\$ 107.81	\$ 111.04	\$ 114.38	\$ 117.81	\$ 121.34
Painters	ST	\$ 59.64	\$ 61.44	\$ 63.28	\$ 65.17	\$ 67.11
	OT	\$ 72.21	\$ 74.38	\$ 76.61	\$ 78.91	\$ 81.27
Welders	ST	\$ 60.99	\$ 62.82	\$ 64.71	\$ 66.64	\$ 68.65
	OT	\$ 74.13	\$ 76.35	\$ 78.64	\$ 81.00	\$ 83.43
Lead Crane Electrician	ST	\$ 69.80	\$ 71.88	\$ 74.05	\$ 76.27	\$ 78.56
	OT	\$ 82.85	\$ 85.33	\$ 87.89	\$ 90.53	\$ 93.25
Electrician	ST	\$ 64.62	\$ 66.55	\$ 68.55	\$ 70.61	\$ 72.72
	OT	\$ 75.26	\$ 77.51	\$ 79.84	\$ 82.23	\$ 84.70
Electrician Trainee	ST	\$ 59.48	\$ 61.26	\$ 63.09	\$ 64.99	\$ 66.94
	OT	\$ 67.73	\$ 69.76	\$ 71.85	\$ 74.01	\$ 76.23
Senior Port Engineer	ST	\$ 92.14	\$ 94.90	\$ 97.75	\$ 100.68	\$ 103.70
	OT	\$ 112.79	\$ 116.18	\$ 119.67	\$ 123.26	\$ 126.97
Port Engineer	ST	\$ 84.61	\$ 87.15	\$ 89.76	\$ 92.45	\$ 95.22
	OT	\$ 102.54	\$ 105.62	\$ 108.68	\$ 112.05	\$ 115.42

Notes:

- (1) Labor Billing Rates are established for each labor category for each Contract Years 14-18 and are not subject to adjustment with the exception of the component for Worker's Compensation as detailed in item (3) below.
- (2) Labor Billing Rates are inclusive of wages and fringe benefits negotiated by GFC Crane with their collective bargaining groups: Federation of Private Employees, Marine Engineers Benevolent Association (MEBA), and the Seafarers International Union (SIU). Additional components of Labor Billing Rates are FICA, State and Federal Unemployment, and Worker's Compensation.
- (3) The Worker's Compensation Insurance base rate is established at 8.5% of base wage in Contract Year 14 and is subject to adjustments for Contract Years 15-18 based upon the following formula:
 - Base rate @ 8.5%
 - If the rate charged to GFC increases to between 8.5%-10.5%, GFC absorbs the increased cost with no change to the hourly Labor Billing Rates.
 - If the rate charged to GFC increases to between 10.6%-12.5%, an adjustment(s) is made to the Worker's Compensation component of the Labor Billing Rates effective at the beginning of the next Contract Year.
 - If the rate charged to GFC increases beyond 12.5%, GFC absorbs the costs above 12.5% with no additional change to the hourly Labor Billing Rates.
- (4) All non-working labor charges shall be paid by COUNTY to GFC at the ST billings rates.
- (5) Vacation buy back will be paid at the employee's hourly pay rate up to \$1,500 per request. Under no circumstances shall it exceed 30 requests per contract year.
- (6) Maximum annual labor payment not to exceed:
 - 14th Year - \$6,610,000
 - 15th Year - \$6,808,300
 - 16th Year - \$7,422,549
 - 17th Year - \$7,645,226
 - 18th Year - \$7,874,583

EXHIBIT "E(10)"
SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS' BILLING RATES AND ANNUAL NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNTS

Exhibit 2
Page 38 of 42

<u>DISCIPLINE</u>	<u>SUBCONTRACTOR</u>	<u>CATEGORY</u>	<u>HOURS</u>	<u>14TH YEAR</u>	<u>15TH YEAR</u>	<u>16TH YEAR</u>	<u>17TH YEAR</u>	<u>18TH YEAR</u>
ENGINEERING-PRIMARY	LIFTECH CONSULTANTS	ENGINEER	S/T	\$ 237.00	\$ 244.00	\$ 251.00	\$ 259.00	\$ 267.00
ENGINEERING-SECONDARY	SHAW-GBB	ENGINEER	S/T	\$ 237.00	\$ 244.00	\$ 251.00	\$ 259.00	\$ 267.00
ENGINEERING SERVICES	SLM ENGINEERS	STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING	S/T	\$ 150.00	\$ 155.00	\$ 160.00	\$ 165.00	\$ 170.00
ENGINEERING SERVICES	SLM ENGINEERS	STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING	O/T	\$ 175.00	\$ 180.00	\$ 186.00	\$ 192.00	\$ 197.00
ENGINEERING SERVICES	MITRIS	SERVICE SPECIALIST	S/T	\$ 220.00	\$ 227.00	\$ 234.00	\$ 241.00	\$ 248.00
ENGINEERING SERVICES	MITRIS	SERVICE SPECIALIST	O/T	\$ 330.00	\$ 340.00	\$ 350.00	\$ 361.00	\$ 372.00
ENGINEERING SERVICES	MITRIS	ENGINEER/PROJECT MANAGER	S/T	\$ 165.00	\$ 170.00	\$ 175.00	\$ 180.00	\$ 185.00
ENGINEERING SERVICES	MITRIS	ENGINEER/PROJECT MANAGER	O/T	\$ 248.00	\$ 255.00	\$ 263.00	\$ 271.00	\$ 279.00
ELECTRONIC CARD REPAIR	GEXPRO	BILLING RATES ATTACHED SEE ATTACHMENT 1						
FLAME STRAIGHTENING	DAN L. DALTON	PRINCIPAL	S/T	\$ 218.00	\$ 225.00	\$ 232.00	\$ 239.00	\$ 246.00
FLAME STRAIGHTENING	DAN L. DALTON	TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 135.00	\$ 139.00	\$ 143.00	\$ 147.00	\$ 151.00
STRUCTURAL INSPECTION	NDE SERVICES	INSPECTOR UT	S/T	\$ 153.00	\$ 158.00	\$ 163.00	\$ 168.00	\$ 173.00
STRUCTURAL INSPECTION	NDE SERVICES	INSPECTOR MT	S/T	\$ 62.00	\$ 64.00	\$ 66.00	\$ 68.00	\$ 70.00
STRUCTURAL INSPECTION	SLM ENGINEERS	WELDING AND STRUCTURAL INSPECTIONS	S/T	\$ 135.00	\$ 139.00	\$ 143.00	\$ 147.00	\$ 151.00
STRUCTURAL INSPECTION	SLM ENGINEERS	WELDING AND STRUCTURAL INSPECTIONS	O/T	\$ 150.00	\$ 155.00	\$ 160.00	\$ 165.00	\$ 170.00
PAINTING/WATER BLASTING	CHAMPION PAINTING SPECIALTY SVCS	PAINTER	S/T	\$ 87.00	\$ 90.00	\$ 93.00	\$ 96.00	\$ 99.00
PAINTING/WATER BLASTING	GROOME INDUSTRIAL SERVICE GROUP	PAINTER	S/T	\$ 87.00	\$ 90.00	\$ 93.00	\$ 96.00	\$ 99.00
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING	TMEIC	TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 320.00	\$ 330.00	\$ 340.00	\$ 350.00	\$ 361.00
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING	TMEIC	TECHNICIAN	O/T	\$ 480.00	\$ 494.00	\$ 509.00	\$ 524.00	\$ 540.00
MACHINING AND FABRICATING	KCM MACHINE SHOP	MACHINIST/WELDER/TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 112.00	\$ 115.00	\$ 118.00	\$ 122.00	\$ 126.00
MACHINING AND FABRICATING	KCM MACHINE SHOP	SUPERVISOR	S/T	\$ 119.00	\$ 123.00	\$ 127.00	\$ 131.00	\$ 135.00
MACHINING AND FABRICATING	JLF PORT AND INDUSTRIAL SERVICES	MACHINIST/WELDER/TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 112.00	\$ 115.00	\$ 118.00	\$ 122.00	\$ 126.00
MACHINING AND FABRICATING	JLF PORT AND INDUSTRIAL SERVICES	SUPERVISOR	S/T	\$ 119.00	\$ 123.00	\$ 127.00	\$ 131.00	\$ 135.00
MACHINING AND FABRICATING	SLM ENGINEERS	WELDING/FABRICATION SERVICES	S/T	\$ 85.00	\$ 88.00	\$ 91.00	\$ 94.00	\$ 97.00
MACHINING AND FABRICATING	SLM ENGINEERS	WELDING/FABRICATION SERVICES	O/T	\$ 105.00	\$ 108.00	\$ 111.00	\$ 114.00	\$ 117.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAMPA ARMATURE WORKS	SHOP	S/T	\$ 85.00	\$ 88.00	\$ 91.00	\$ 94.00	\$ 97.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAMPA ARMATURE WORKS	SHOP	O/T	\$ 107.00	\$ 110.00	\$ 113.00	\$ 116.00	\$ 119.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAMPA ARMATURE WORKS	FIELD	S/T	\$ 115.00	\$ 118.00	\$ 122.00	\$ 126.00	\$ 130.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAMPA ARMATURE WORKS	FIELD	O/T	\$ 122.00	\$ 126.00	\$ 130.00	\$ 134.00	\$ 138.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAC ARMATURE & PUMPS CORP	SHOP	S/T	\$ 85.00	\$ 88.00	\$ 91.00	\$ 94.00	\$ 97.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAC ARMATURE & PUMPS CORP	SHOP	O/T	\$ 107.00	\$ 110.00	\$ 113.00	\$ 116.00	\$ 119.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAC ARMATURE & PUMPS CORP	FIELD	S/T	\$ 115.00	\$ 118.00	\$ 122.00	\$ 126.00	\$ 130.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	TAC ARMATURE & PUMPS CORP	FIELD	O/T	\$ 122.00	\$ 126.00	\$ 130.00	\$ 134.00	\$ 138.00

EXHIBIT "E(10)"
SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS' BILLING RATES AND ANNUAL NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNTS

Exhibit 2
Page 39 of 42

<u>DISCIPLINE</u>	<u>SUBCONTRACTOR</u>	<u>CATEGORY</u>	<u>HOURS</u>	<u>14TH YEAR</u>	<u>15TH YEAR</u>	<u>16TH YEAR</u>	<u>17TH YEAR</u>	<u>18TH YEAR</u>
ELECTRIC MOTOR	MITRIS	BALANCE TECH/GENERATOR SPECIALIST	S/T	\$ 130.00	\$ 134.00	\$ 138.00	\$ 142.00	\$ 146.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	MITRIS	BALANCE TECH/GENERATOR SPECIALIST	O/T	\$ 195.00	\$ 201.00	\$ 207.00	\$ 213.00	\$ 219.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	MITRIS	THERMOGRAPHY/VIBRATION ANALYST	S/T	\$ 110.00	\$ 113.00	\$ 116.00	\$ 119.00	\$ 123.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	MITRIS	THERMOGRAPHY/VIBRATION ANALYST	O/T	\$ 165.00	\$ 170.00	\$ 175.00	\$ 180.00	\$ 185.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	MITRIS	GENERATOR TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 95.00	\$ 98.00	\$ 101.00	\$ 104.00	\$ 107.00
ELECTRIC MOTOR	MITRIS	GENERATOR TECHNICIAN	O/T	\$ 143.00	\$ 147.00	\$ 151.00	\$ 156.00	\$ 161.00
ELECTRIC HIGH-VOLTAGE	BROWN & BROWN ELECTRIC, INC.	LICENSED ELECTRICIANS	S/T	\$ 131.00	\$ 135.00	\$ 139.00	\$ 143.00	\$ 147.00
ELECTRIC HIGH-VOLTAGE	BROWN & BROWN ELECTRIC, INC.	LICENSED ELECTRICIANS	O/T	\$ 169.00	\$ 174.00	\$ 179.00	\$ 184.00	\$ 190.00
ELECTRIC HIGH-VOLTAGE	BROWN & BROWN ELECTRIC, INC.	ELECTRICIANS	S/T	\$ 126.00	\$ 130.00	\$ 134.00	\$ 138.00	\$ 142.00
ELECTRIC HIGH-VOLTAGE	BROWN & BROWN ELECTRIC, INC.	ELECTRICIANS	O/T	\$ 140.00	\$ 144.00	\$ 148.00	\$ 152.00	\$ 157.00
MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL SVC	MITRIS	MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL SUPERVISOR	S/T	\$ 115.00	\$ 118.00	\$ 122.00	\$ 126.00	\$ 130.00
MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL SVC	MITRIS	MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL SUPERVISOR	O/T	\$ 173.00	\$ 178.00	\$ 183.00	\$ 188.00	\$ 194.00
MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL SVC	MITRIS	MECHANICAL TECHNIAN	S/T	\$ 95.00	\$ 98.00	\$ 101.00	\$ 104.00	\$ 107.00
MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL SVC	MITRIS	MECHANICAL TECHNIAN	O/T	\$ 143.00	\$ 147.00	\$ 151.00	\$ 156.00	\$ 161.00
MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL SVC	MITRIS	MACHINIST/WELDER	S/T	\$ 90.00	\$ 93.00	\$ 96.00	\$ 99.00	\$ 102.00
MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL SVC	MITRIS	MACHINIST/WELDER	O/T	\$ 135.00	\$ 139.00	\$ 143.00	\$ 147.00	\$ 151.00
RIGGING	GLOBAL RIGGING & TRANSPORT, LLC	PRINCIPAL	S/T	\$ 209.00	\$ 215.00	\$ 221.00	\$ 228.00	\$ 235.00
RIGGING	GLOBAL RIGGING & TRANSPORT, LLC	SUPERVISOR	S/T	\$ 128.00	\$ 132.00	\$ 136.00	\$ 140.00	\$ 144.00
RIGGING	GLOBAL RIGGING & TRANSPORT, LLC	SUPERVISOR	O/T	\$ 174.00	\$ 179.00	\$ 184.00	\$ 189.00	\$ 195.00
RIGGING	GLOBAL RIGGING & TRANSPORT, LLC	TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 111.00	\$ 114.00	\$ 117.00	\$ 121.00	\$ 125.00
RIGGING	GLOBAL RIGGING & TRANSPORT, LLC	TECHNICIAN	O/T	\$ 160.00	\$ 165.00	\$ 170.00	\$ 175.00	\$ 180.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	40 TON HYDRAULIC TRUCK CRANE	S/T	\$ 60.00	\$ 62.00	\$ 64.00	\$ 66.00	\$ 68.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	40 TON HYDRAULIC TRUCK CRANE	O/T	\$ 120.00	\$ 122.00	\$ 124.00	\$ 126.00	\$ 128.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	70 TON HYDRAULIC TRUCK CRANE	S/T	\$ 250.00	\$ 258.00	\$ 266.00	\$ 274.00	\$ 282.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	70 TON HYDRAULIC TRUCK CRANE	O/T	\$ 310.00	\$ 318.00	\$ 326.00	\$ 334.00	\$ 342.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	100 TON HYDRAULIC TRUCK CRANE	S/T	\$ 400.00	\$ 412.00	\$ 424.00	\$ 437.00	\$ 450.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	100 TON HYDRAULIC TRUCK CRANE	O/T	\$ 460.00	\$ 472.00	\$ 302.00	\$ 497.00	\$ 510.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	165 TON LATTICE BOOM TRUCK CRANE	S/T	\$ 660.00	\$ 680.00	\$ 700.00	\$ 721.00	\$ 743.00
CRANE RENTAL	SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT	165 TON LATTICE BOOM TRUCK CRANE	O/T	\$ 720.00	\$ 740.00	\$ 760.00	\$ 781.00	\$ 803.00
DIESEL ENGINE SERVICE	ALL PRO ROAD SERVICE INC.	TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 125.00	\$ 129.00	\$ 133.00	\$ 137.00	\$ 141.00
DIESEL ENGINE SERVICE	ALL PRO ROAD SERVICE INC.	TECHNICIAN	O/T	\$ 165.00	\$ 170.00	\$ 175.00	\$ 180.00	\$ 185.00
AIR CONDITIONING	FLASH FREEZE AIR CONDITIONING INC	TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 100.00	\$ 103.00	\$ 107.00	\$ 110.00	\$ 113.00
AIR CONDITIONING	FLASH FREEZE AIR CONDITIONING INC	TECHNICIAN	O/T	\$ 175.00	\$ 180.00	\$ 185.00	\$ 191.00	\$ 197.00
FABRICATION	METASOL CORP	MACHINIST/WELDER/TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 105.00	\$ 108.00	\$ 111.00	\$ 114.00	\$ 117.00
FABRICATION	METASOL CORP	MACHINIST/WELDER/TECHNICIAN	O/T	\$ 117.00	\$ 121.00	\$ 125.00	\$ 129.00	\$ 133.00
FIBER OPTIC SERVICES	UNITED FIBER OPTICS	TECHNICIAN	S/T	\$ 195.00	\$ 201.00	\$ 207.00	\$ 213.00	\$ 219.00
FIBER OPTIC SERVICES	UNITED FIBER OPTICS	TECHNICIAN	O/T	\$ 293.00	\$ 302.00	\$ 311.00	\$ 320.00	\$ 330.00

EXHIBIT "E(10)"
SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS' BILLING RATES AND ANNUAL NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNTS

Exhibit 2
Page 40 of 42

<u>DISCIPLINE</u>	<u>SUBCONTRACTOR</u>	<u>CATEGORY</u>	<u>HOURS</u>	<u>14TH YEAR</u>	<u>15TH YEAR</u>	<u>16TH YEAR</u>	<u>17TH YEAR</u>	<u>18TH YEAR</u>
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	LABOR (SHOP RATES)	S/T	\$ 95.00	\$ 98.00	\$ 101.00	\$ 104.00	\$ 107.00
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	LABOR (MACHINE SHOP)	S/T	\$ 100.00	\$ 103.00	\$ 106.00	\$ 109.00	\$ 112.00
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	LABOR (FIELD) SERVICE TECH	S/T	\$ 130.00	\$ 134.00	\$ 138.00	\$ 142.00	\$ 146.00
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	LABOR (FIELD) SERVICE TECH	O/T	\$ 195.00	\$ 201.00	\$ 207.00	\$ 213.00	\$ 219.00
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	LABOR (FIELD) SERVICE TECH - SUNDAY	O/T	\$ 260.00	\$ 268.00	\$ 276.00	\$ 284.00	\$ 293.00
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	LABOR (FIELD) SERVICE TECH - HOLIDAY	O/T	\$ 390.00	\$ 402.00	\$ 414.00	\$ 426.00	\$ 439.00
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	1/4" - 3/8"	\$ 10.65	\$ 10.97	\$ 11.30	\$ 11.64	\$ 11.99
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	1/2"	\$ 13.65	\$ 14.06	\$ 14.48	\$ 14.92	\$ 15.36
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	5/8"	\$ 16.80	\$ 17.30	\$ 17.82	\$ 18.36	\$ 18.91
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	3/4"	\$ 19.80	\$ 20.39	\$ 21.01	\$ 21.64	\$ 22.29
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	1"	\$ 24.45	\$ 25.18	\$ 25.94	\$ 26.72	\$ 27.52
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	1-1/4"	\$ 27.45	\$ 28.27	\$ 29.12	\$ 30.00	\$ 30.90
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	1-1/2"	\$ 32.10	\$ 33.06	\$ 34.05	\$ 35.08	\$ 36.13
HYDRAULIC REPAIRS	HYDRAULIC SUPPLY COMPANY	HOSE ASSEMBLY LABOR (Per hose)	2"	\$ 39.60	\$ 40.79	\$ 42.01	\$ 43.27	\$ 44.57
ON SITE HYDRAULIC SERVICES	INDUSTRIAL HOSE & HYDRAULICS INC.	LABOR (Remove, Fabricate new hose, install/test)	S/T	\$ 150.00	\$ 155.00	\$ 160.00	\$ 165.00	\$ 170.00
ON SITE HYDRAULIC SERVICES	INDUSTRIAL HOSE & HYDRAULICS INC.	LABOR (Remove, Fabricate new hose, install/test)	O/T	\$ 250.00	\$ 258.00	\$ 266.00	\$ 274.00	\$ 282.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENERATOR 150kVA	WEEK	\$ 1,400.00	\$ 1,442.00	\$ 1,485.00	\$ 1,530.00	\$ 1,576.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENERATOR 150kVA	MONTH	\$ 3,550.00	\$ 3,657.00	\$ 3,766.00	\$ 3,879.00	\$ 3,996.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENERATOR 2500kVA	WEEK	\$ 20,450.00	\$ 21,064.00	\$ 21,695.00	\$ 22,346.00	\$ 23,017.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENERATOR 2500kVA	MONTH	\$ 67,000.00	\$ 69,010.00	\$ 71,080.00	\$ 73,213.00	\$ 75,409.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	TRANSFORMER 2500kVA 460/550 60Hz	WEEK	\$ 4,950.00	\$ 5,099.00	\$ 5,251.00	\$ 5,409.00	\$ 5,571.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	TRANSFORMER 2500kVA 460/550 60Hz	MONTH	\$ 8,950.00	\$ 9,219.00	\$ 9,495.00	\$ 9,780.00	\$ 10,073.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENIE 5K 19FT 5000MAX ALL SAFETY GEAR	WEEK	\$ 1,075.00	\$ 1,107.00	\$ 1,140.00	\$ 1,175.00	\$ 1,210.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENIE 5K 19FT 5000MAX ALL SAFETY GEAR	MONTH	\$ 1,895.00	\$ 1,952.00	\$ 2,010.00	\$ 2,071.00	\$ 2,133.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENIE 6K 36FT 6000MAX ALL SAFETY GEAR	WEEK	\$ 1,200.00	\$ 1,236.00	\$ 1,273.00	\$ 1,311.00	\$ 1,351.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENIE 6K 36FT 6000MAX ALL SAFETY GEAR	MONTH	\$ 2,535.00	\$ 2,611.00	\$ 2,689.00	\$ 2,770.00	\$ 2,853.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENIE 12K 56FT 12000MAX ALL SAFETY GEAR	WEEK	\$ 2,500.00	\$ 2,575.00	\$ 2,652.00	\$ 2,732.00	\$ 2,814.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	GENIE 12K 56FT 12000MAX ALL SAFETY GEAR	MONTH	\$ 4,400.00	\$ 4,532.00	\$ 4,668.00	\$ 4,808.00	\$ 4,952.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	BOOM LIFT DIESEL 120FT	WEEK	\$ 4,200.00	\$ 4,326.00	\$ 4,456.00	\$ 4,590.00	\$ 4,727.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	BOOM LIFT DIESEL 120FT	MONTH	\$ 8,495.00	\$ 8,750.00	\$ 9,012.00	\$ 9,283.00	\$ 9,561.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	BOOM LIFT DIESEL 135FT	WEEK	\$ 4,600.00	\$ 4,738.00	\$ 4,880.00	\$ 5,027.00	\$ 5,178.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	BOOM LIFT DIESEL 135FT	MONTH	\$ 8,700.00	\$ 8,961.00	\$ 9,230.00	\$ 9,507.00	\$ 9,792.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	BOOM LIFT DIESEL 180FT	WEEK	\$ 12,500.00	\$ 12,875.00	\$ 13,261.00	\$ 13,659.00	\$ 14,069.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	BOOM LIFT DIESEL 180FT	MONTH	\$ 29,000.00	\$ 29,870.00	\$ 30,766.00	\$ 31,689.00	\$ 32,640.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	POWER CABLE 4/0 TYPE W 50FT	WEEK	\$ 35.00	\$ 36.00	\$ 37.00	\$ 38.00	\$ 39.00
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	KILOWATT BOY INC.	POWER CABLE 4/0 TYPE W 50FT	MONTH	\$ 59.00	\$ 61.00	\$ 63.00	\$ 65.00	\$ 67.00

(1) Subcontractors services billing rates are the rates that will be paid by the County to GFC. Other than as provided in item (3) below, there is no Mark-up of the rates by GFC.

(2) Travel time is not billable or reimbursable; County will not pay for any travel time.

(3) As compensation for administering and overseeing the work of Subcontractors services, GFC will be paid an administrative fee equal to 2.5% of the approved billings of Subcontractor services. The administrative fee will be added to each Subcontractor services invoice and paid to GFC at the time GFC is reimbursed for the work of the Subcontractor services.

(4) Maximum annual payment for work performed by Subcontractors services inclusive of the GFC administrative fee (see item (3) above) are not to exceed:

- 14th Year - \$1,120,187
- 15th Year - \$1,153,792
- 16th Year - \$1,188,406
- 17th Year - \$1,224,058
- 18th Year - \$1,260,780

- (5) GFC agreed to implement written agreements with each Subcontractor based on a form acceptable to the County.
- (6) Any adding/removing/changes to Subcontractors require prior written approval by the Contract Administrator.
- (7) Hours are defined as:
 - S/T - Straight Time is Monday thru Friday 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM
 - O/T - Over Time is Monday thru Friday 5:01 PM to 7:59 AM, Weekends, and Holidays.

ATTACHMENT 1 TO EXHIBIT "E(10)"
SUBCONTRACTOR GEXPRO BILLING RATES

Exhibit 2
Page 42 of 42

<u>Line</u>	<u>Part Number Entered</u>	<u>Description</u>	<u>Year 14</u>	<u>Year 15</u>	<u>Year 16</u>	<u>Year 17</u>	<u>Year 18</u>
1	531X124MSDAJG1	MFC SUPP BOARD	\$1,568.66	\$1,615.72	\$1,664.19	\$1,714.12	\$1,765.54
2	531X135PRGAXM2	DC300 PUP23 PGRMMR	\$695.04	\$715.89	\$737.37	\$759.49	\$782.27
3	DS200SIOCG1A	MODULE REP	\$5,137.24	\$5,291.36	\$5,450.10	\$5,613.60	\$5,782.01
4	DS200SSBAG1B	DC300/2000 SNUBBER C	\$3,134.18	\$3,228.21	\$3,325.05	\$3,424.80	\$3,527.55
5	531X160HFCACG1	HOME/FLAG CARD	\$1,157.04	\$1,191.75	\$1,227.50	\$1,264.33	\$1,302.26
6	531X167MFRALG1	REMOTE MFC CARD	\$1,732.57	\$1,784.55	\$1,838.08	\$1,893.23	\$1,950.02
7	531X207LCSAGG1	LAN CUR SOURCE	\$1,908.96	\$1,966.23	\$2,025.22	\$2,085.97	\$2,148.55
8	531X305NTBAPG1AP	DRIVE TERMINAL CARD	\$3,846.56	\$3,961.96	\$4,080.82	\$4,203.24	\$4,329.34
9	531X307LTBAKG1	1/0 TB CARD	\$5,824.98	\$5,999.73	\$6,179.72	\$6,365.11	\$6,556.07
10	531X309SPCPAJG1	SIGNAL PROCESS CARD	\$3,842.14	\$3,957.40	\$4,076.13	\$4,198.41	\$4,324.36
11	531X310SNDADG1	DC2000 SNUBBER CD	\$3,050.37	\$3,141.88	\$3,236.14	\$3,333.22	\$3,433.22
12	DS200ACNAG1	ARCNET CONNECTION CA	\$2,303.67	\$2,372.78	\$2,443.96	\$2,517.28	\$2,592.80
13	DS200CPCAG1A	CONTACTOR PILOT CD R	\$2,010.10	\$2,070.40	\$2,132.52	\$2,196.49	\$2,262.39
14	DS200CSSAG1A	CELL ASSEMBLY REP	\$5,603.39	\$5,771.49	\$5,944.64	\$6,122.98	\$6,306.66
15	DS200DCFBG1BLC	Power Feedback Card	\$5,487.57	\$5,652.20	\$5,821.76	\$5,996.42	\$6,176.31
16	DS200FSAAG2A	MODULE REP	\$3,268.04	\$3,366.08	\$3,467.06	\$3,571.08	\$3,678.21
17	DS200LDCCH1A	CARD-DRIVE LAN/CTRL,	\$6,707.41	\$6,908.63	\$7,115.89	\$7,329.37	\$7,549.25
18	DS200LPPAG1A	LINE PROTECTION CARD	\$2,547.79	\$2,624.22	\$2,702.95	\$2,784.04	\$2,867.56
19	DS200PCCAG1A	POWER CONNECT CARD	\$3,636.08	\$3,745.16	\$3,857.52	\$3,973.24	\$4,092.44
20	DS200PCCAG5A	POWER CONNECT CARD	\$3,813.72	\$3,928.13	\$4,045.98	\$4,167.35	\$4,292.38
21	DS200RTBAG3A	RELAY TERMINAL BOARD	\$3,692.31	\$3,803.08	\$3,917.17	\$4,034.69	\$4,155.73
22	DS200SBCBG1A	MODULE REP	\$3,521.06	\$3,626.69	\$3,735.49	\$3,847.56	\$3,962.98
23	DS200SHVMG1A	SCR HIGH VOLT CARD R	\$3,391.75	\$3,493.50	\$3,598.31	\$3,706.26	\$3,817.44
24	36C774353ARG03	CELL STACK	\$6,610.57	\$6,808.89	\$7,013.15	\$7,223.55	\$7,440.25
25	531X155TXMACG1	TACH ISO XMT BD	\$750.02	\$772.52	\$795.70	\$819.57	\$844.15
26	531X308PCSADG1	DC2000 POWER CONN CD	\$3,227.45	\$3,324.27	\$3,424.00	\$3,526.72	\$3,632.52
27	DS200CSSAG1B	CELL STATE SENSOR ASSEMB	\$6,310.43	\$6,499.74	\$6,694.74	\$6,895.58	\$7,102.44
28	DS2020FEANRPOS0A	FLD EXC. SOA (NR-PLU	\$7,354.47	\$7,575.10	\$7,802.36	\$8,036.43	\$8,277.52
29	DS2020FECNRX005A	FLD EXC. SA (NR-NP)	\$4,721.73	\$4,863.38	\$5,009.28	\$5,159.56	\$5,314.35
30	DS2020FECNRX010A	FLD EXC. 10A (NR-NP)	\$4,721.73	\$4,863.38	\$5,009.28	\$5,159.56	\$5,314.35
31	DS2020FECNRX015A	FLD EXC. 15A (NR-NP)	\$4,721.73	\$4,863.38	\$5,009.28	\$5,159.56	\$5,314.35
32	DS2020LPPA340A	LINE PROTECTION (40M	\$4,422.63	\$4,555.31	\$4,691.97	\$4,832.73	\$4,977.71
33	531X310SNDAAEG1	DC2000 SNUBBER CARD	\$2,803.12	\$2,887.21	\$2,973.83	\$3,063.04	\$3,154.94
34	173C8989ADG01	ASM,MFC REMOTE W/GAS	\$5,666.53	\$5,836.53	\$6,011.62	\$6,191.97	\$6,377.73
35	DS200ADGIH1AAA	AUX DC2K GEN INTR/CO	\$1,438.66	\$1,481.82	\$1,526.27	\$1,572.06	\$1,619.22
36	173C8413BCG01	STACK77M MM2100V4Q	\$8,988.81	\$9,258.47	\$9,536.23	\$9,822.32	\$10,116.98
37	531X310SNDAAAG1	CPACA REMOTE ASSY	\$2,802.63	\$2,886.71	\$2,973.31	\$3,062.51	\$3,154.38